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NARRATIVE REPORT

Introduction

The Narrative Report provides a concise guide to the most significant matters reported in the Statement of
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021. Identifying how the Council used its financial and non- financial
resources to deliver its service objectives.

Brentwood Borough

The Borough of Brentwood is situated in the southwest of Essex, 18 miles from London and covers 15.321
hectares. The population is 77,021 based on a 2019 mid-year estimate. The majority of the population is
located in the two large towns of Brentwood and Shenfield and their surrounding neighbourhoods.

All of the Borough’s countryside lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt of London, equating to 89% of the
Borough. It has significant build and natural heritage, with over 500 listed buildings, 12 scheduled ancient
monuments, accessible countryside and parks and many local wildlife sites.

The Borough has excellent road and rail connections. The M25, A12 and A127 trunk roads flow through the
Borough and there are convenient, fast rail links to London and East Anglia. These rail links will be further
enhanced by the arrival of the Elizabeth Line at Brentwood and Shenfield stations by Autumn 2020; providing
new direct links through Central London to Heathrow Airport and Reading. Stansted, City and Southend
Airports are all 30 to 40 minutes drive away.

The Borough's housing stock is 80% owner occupied. The majority of this has been renovated and there are
therefore few areas of poor quality housing in the Borough. There is a need, as nationally, for significantly
more low cost affordable housing

The Council

The electorate of Brentwood is represented by 37 councillors and the Mayor covering 15 electoral wards
across the Borough. The political make up being: 20 Conservative, 13 Liberal Democrat, 3 Labour and 1
Independent. Brentwood Borough Council is responsible for delivering a range of services to the residents of
the Borough.

The Council has a 'committee style' of governance, where decisions are made in committees comprising
councillors from all political parties.

The Council's organisational structure supports the work of Councillors; the structure comprises the Chief
Executive and 6 Directors. In addition as required by statute the Council retains a Head of Paid Service, a
Monitoring Officer and a Chief Finance Officer. An Extended Leadership Team, comprised of service managers,
supports the Senior leadership Team to deliver the Councils services and corporate priorities and deliver the
corporate plan - Brentwood 2025.
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NARRATIVE REPORT

The Council’s key resources and assets are:

e a workforce of approximately 240 full-time equivalent staff as at March 2021

e property, plant and equipment to the value of £421.955m, and investment assets within the borough to
the value of £16.714m

e ahousing stock of 2,475 dwellings with a value of £277.873m as at 31st March 2021, generating rental
income of £12m for 2020/21.

e annual income from fees & charges and investment income of £22.543m
e Tax base annual income of £7.058m

e Business Rates Tax Base of £68.017m as at 31st March 2021.

The Council's wholly owned subsidiary, Seven Arches Limited, contributed £2.502m to the annual operating
income for the Council as a Group, representing investment property income and interest on loans advanced
from the Council and income from a service level agreement with the Council for the provision of managerial
and professional services.

The Council continues to balance its annual budget strategy despite no longer receiving revenue support grant
from the Government.

Challenges for the Future

The Borough’s prosperity in terms of higher than average house prices and average income and success in
terms of high educational attainment standards, is the challenge for the future. There is a high demand for
affordable housing, especially for residents working in the borough. Employers attracted to the borough face
higher business premises rentals and wages, impacting on reduced local employment. This is compounded
with a location which has the limitations of 90% green belt.

Key Achievements for 2020/21
The Council made major progress in many key areas during 2020/21. The following is a summary of its key
achievements.

1.Brentwood 2025
2020/21 saw the first full year since adopting the revised Corporate Strategy, Brentwood 2025. The annual
review of this strategy was presented to Ordinary Council on 10" °f March 2021. This review looked at
associated key priorities for the year and how the Council had achieved them. The medium-term financial
strategy continues to be agreed to deliver these priorities.

2.Joint Venture Partnership-progress

In March 2018 Council approved a Competitive Dialogue Procedure under the Public Contracts Regulations
2015, to procure a Joint Venture partner to realise the potential of the Council’s property asset base.
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The Joint venture partnership contract and framework agreement was awarded to Morgan Sindall Investments
Ltd (MSIL) through Seven Arches Investments Ltd (SAIL) the Council’s wholly owned company in July 2019. The
Brentwood Development Partnership LLP (BDP) was formed between Morgan Sindall Investments Ltd (MSIL)
and Seven Arches Investments Ltd (SAIL) and the contract was signed on 9th October 2019. The private sector
partnership interest in the JV transferred during 2020/21 from MSIL to Muse Developments Ltd (part of the
Morgan Sindall plc group).

In December 2020 applications were submitted for development through the partnership for Maple Close and
Seven Arches. These were approved at March 2021 Planning committee. These developments plan to bring 18
residential units to the borough. Options for the development of two other sites, Westbury Road and William
Hunter Ways sites, were also considered, and were ongoing at the date of these accounts.

3.Improvement of Waste Management Services
The Council introduced a recycling scheme to improve the quality of recycling and reduce the number of
polymer sacks issued by 80%. By eliminating single use orange recycling sacks, the Council was able to prevent
200+ tonnes of carbon emissions. The new recycling scheme kerbside collections were completed in August
2020; for communal properties collection 50% was achieved with the remaining to be completed within the
year. The change in the scheme is forecast to generate approximately £180k in savings for the Council.

4.Local Development Plan
Work continued the Local Development Plan. On 22" January 2020 Council approved the addendum of
focussed changes to the pre-submission Local Plan and the Local Plan was submitted to the planning
inspectorate (Reg 22) in February 2020. The plan is currently under examination and during the year 14
matters have been discussed at hearing sessions. As at the date of these accounts the LDP plan continues its
examination process.

5. Affordable Housing
In October 2020, the Council established a clear and deliverable strategic Housing Development Plan. This
plan aims to deliver much needed affordable housing within the borough across the HRA sites. The 2020/21
capital strategy and Housing Revenue Account contains the start of the financial capacity to progress with the
programme. The Council submitted a planning application to build 60 carbon neutral homes, and the 2020/21
capital budget supports the delivering of this scheme.

6. Creation of a new Garden village at Dunton Hills
The Dunton Hills Garden Village continues to develop. During 2020-21 a 10-part community co-design process
was carried out to support the design the of the village. The proposal is for a new settlement in a borough of
villages, with the aim of providing 4,000 new homes, new schools, job opportunities, health and care facilities
and new public spaces.

7.King George's Playing Fields and facilities
In January 2020 the Council's Planning Committee approved planned for new developments in King George's
Playing Fields. The plans include a new pavilion building, splash pad and a new outdoor adventure play facility.
The new facilities include a fully accessible pavilion building, which will include new changing rooms, toilet and
showers, golf club lounge, sensory room, changing places facility, new café, indoor soft play and TAG active,
which is an indoor assault course that can be done as an individual or against friends and family.

Outside, a new splash pad facility will be developed on the footprint of the old paddling pools. The fully
accessible facility will be supported by new toilets, a kiosk selling hot and cold drinks and a new changing
places facility. In addition to the splash pad, a new outdoor adventure play facility will be developed. The
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commencement of phase 1 of this project began in December 2020. The scheme is scheduled to be completed
by Spring 2022.

8.COVID-19
In response to the national lockdowns imposed by Central Government, the Council has had to adapt to
support the borough in remaining safe due to the pandemic. The Council adapted in many ways and continued
to deliver frontline services whilst operating under restrictions. The data below expresses what the Council
achieved during 2020-21

COVID-19 achievements
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Financial Performance for 2020/21

The Council's financial performance is provided in full in the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, in line with
international financial reporting standards. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis at Note 1 of the Accounts
provides a summary of the Council's financial performance under the appropriate Council Tax and HRA Rent
setting regulations and financial reporting under international accounting standards.

General Fund Revenue Account
The table below summarises the financial performance of the General Fund Revenue Account for the year:

Budget Actual Variance
outturn

£'000 £'000 £000

Brentwood 2025- Service Expenditure
Growing Our Economy 800 1,507 707
Protecting Our Environment 1,537 2,615 1,078
Developing Our Communities 781 1,130 349
Improving Housing 111 70 (41)
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 5,245 5,733 488
Contingency & Savings (200) 0 200
Total Spend - Brentwood 2025 8,274 11,055 2,781
Operating and Financing Charges 548 39 (509)
Appropriations (22) 396 418
Total Spending Requirement 8,800 11,490 2,690

Funding:

Council Tax (6,384) (6,384) 0
Business Rates Income (1,800) (1,800) 0
Collection Fund Deficit 72 72 0
New Homes Bonus Grant (688) (697) (9)
Income Compensation Grant 0 (1,106) (1,106)
COVID-19 Grant 0 (983) (983)
Other Grants 0 (349) (349)
Total Funding (8,800) (11,247) (2,447)
Deficit on General Fund Services 0 243 243

The General Fund provisional outturn shows a deficit of £0.243m compared to the break-even position
originally budgeted for.
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Housing Revenue Account

The financial performance for the HRA for 2020/21 is detailed below:

Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £000
Expenditure:
Repairs and Maintenance 2,894 2,999 105
Supervision and Management 3,493 3,522 29
Rent, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 186 161 (25)
Corporate and Non-Corporate Democratic Core 443 379 (64)
Depreciation and Impairment 2,970 2,949 (212)
Total Expenditure 9,986 10,010 24
Income:
Dwelling Income (12,012) (12,002) 10
Non-Dwelling Income (347) (315) 32
Charges for Services and Facilities (811) (860) (49)
Contributions to Expenditure (10) (9) 1
Total Income (13,180) (13,186) (6)
Net (Income) on HRA Services (3,194) (3,176) 18
HRA Share of Other Operating Income &
Expenditure
Movement in the Allowance for Bad Debts 60 135 75
Interest Payable and similar charges 1,955 1,960 5
Interest and Investment Interest (58) (44) 14
Contribution to Capital Financing 975 500 (475)
Net Interest on the Net Defined benefit liability 175 216 41
3,107 2,767 (340)
HRA Services (Surplus) (87) (409) (322)

The net underspend of £0.409m against a budget underspend of £0.087m has been achieved by contributing
less revenue to the capital program. This decision was made to build the HRA working balance up to a resilient
level.

Full details of the key variances for General Fund and HRA financial performance are available in the 30t °f
June 2021 Policy, Resources & Economic Development Committee Agenda
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Working Balances and Earmarked Reserves

The impact of the 2020/21 Outturn for the General Fund and the HRA on future working balances is detailed
below:

General Fund

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Actual Actual Budget Budget

General Fund Balance £000 £000 £000 £000
Working Balance B/Fwd 3,117 3,117 2,874 3,114
Surplus/(Funding Gap) 0 (243) 240 204
Working Balance C/fwd 3,117 2,874 3,114 3,318
G Fund Earmarked Reserves C/fwd 4,404 10,783 7,678 9,250

The General Fund working balance carry forward figures represent the figures reported in the 2021/22 budget
report presented to Council on 24 February 2021, updated for the difference of £0.118m between the forecast
2020/21 funding gap (£0.361m) and the outturn funding gap (£0.243m).

Housing Revenue Account

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Actual Budget Budget
£000 £000 £000 £000
HRA Working Balance

Balance C/Fwd 1,071 1,480 1,914 1,932
HRA Earmarked Reserves 2,400 2,400 2,609 3,435

Major Repair Reserves
Balance B/Fwd 4,326 6,345 6,474 1,877
Contributions in 2,946 2,949 3,008 3,013
Contributions out (927) (2,820) (7,528) (3,090)
Balance C/Fwd 6,345 6,474 1,954 1,800
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Capital Programme
The table below summarises the financial performance of the Capital Programme for the year:

Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £'000

Expenditure
Growing Our Economy 0 0 0
Protecting Our Environment 2,152 1,488 (664)
Developing Our Communities 10,907 3,015 (7,892)
Improving Housing 13,415 4,587  (8,828)
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 116,808 116,746 (62)
Total Expenditure 143,282 125,836 (17,446)

Funding

Capital Receipts 200 200 0
HRA Capital Receipts 1,602 468 (1,234)
Capital Grants 285 226 (59)
Major Repairs Reserve 7,769 2,820 (4,949)
Revenue Contributions 975 500 (475)
HRA Borrowing 2,764 608  (2,156)
Borrowing 129,687 121,014 (8,673)
Total Funding 143,282 125,836 (17,446)

There were significant delays to capital projects in 2020/21 due to the ongoing pandemic. At the start of the
year, work ceased completely if deemed non-essential. Projects began to start when lockdown measures
were eased, but the impact of adhering to social distancing measures has slowed projects down significantly.
Prioritisation of works associated to COVID-19 has also meant that other projects have not got off the ground.

The year brought an opportunity to the Council to acquire three assets within the Borough at a cost of £89m.
These assets were acquired to regenerate and shape the future of the borough by unlocking development
opportunities, retaining employment opportunities, and enhancing the socio-economic offering within the
Borough. The cost is recognised in the Developing an Efficient & Effective Council line.

Finally, the Council continued to loan to Seven Arches Investment Limited (SAIL). The Loan Facility agreement
enabled the Council to loan up to £60 million to SAIL. This loan facility was fully utilised in September as SAIL
requested the balance of this facility (£27.5m). This is also recognised in the Developing an Efficient &
Effective Council line.
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Treasury Management
The Council’s net borrowing position at the year-end was as follows:

Long term borrowing £'000 Ave interest rate
HRA 59,166 3.26%
General Fund/Transferrred Debt 49,167 2.46%

Total Long term borrowing 108,333

Short term borrowing

HRA 16 3.26%
General Fund/Transferrred Debt 124,934 0.69%
Total Short term borrowing 124,950
Total External borrowing 233,283
Total Investments 0
Net Borrowing Position 233,283

Since 2012 the HRA has had a business plan to manage and maintain HRA dwelling, provide for investment of
existing stock and finance borrowing of £59.166m. Most of the General Fund short term borrowing has been
taken out to provide capital finance to the Council’s subsidiary, Seven Arches Investments Ltd and to fund the
purchase of strategic property acquisitions.

The Council had a Capital Financing Requirement of £240.598m as at 31st March 2021, representing the
Council’s underlying borrowing need.

Pension Liability

The Council’s Balance Sheet shows a net pension liability of £43.213m at 31 March 2021, offset by a reserve of
the same amount. Details of the required accounting for pension schemes are contained in Note 40 to the
Statement. The liability shows the underlying commitment on the Council to pay pensions in the long run and
the substantial impact on the net worth of the Council.

There are statutory arrangements in place for funding the deficit. Contributions into the Pension Fund over
the remaining working life of employees will increase, if required, to ensure that any deficit is made good
before future pension payments become due.

Medium Term Financial Strategy and Financial Outlook

The Corporate Strategy (Brentwood 2025 Where everyone matters) requires that the Council is committed to
seeking innovative financial solutions that will allow the Council to deliver a prosperous borough to its
residents, businesses and visitors.

In this context the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) seeks to:

e maintain a sustainable financial position against a background of unprecedented financial uncertainty
and reduced government funding, including the delivery of efficiency targets

e support the vision of our Borough through appropriate identification of resources required to deliver
the key priorities outlined in the Corporate Strategy
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e maximise opportunities and mitigate risks associated with the fundamental change to the way in
which local government is financed.

The main issues impacting the MTFP include the reduction In Government Funding. Revenue Support Grant
being nil from 2018/19 onwards. The Council has only received a settlement of one year from central
government. A formal review of the New Homes Bonus Scheme is scheduled and the impact of any changes to
this funding is unknown. The baseline for business rates retention was due to be reset for all authorities in
2020/21. In November, the Spending Review confirmed that this is to be deferred.

There is continued uncertainty over the financial impact of the pandemic on the council. The budget has been
prepared based on normal business and issues will therefore be dealt with as they arise during the year.

The MTFS currently extends to 2023/24 and it forecasts a cumulative surplus £590k by 2023/24 for the
General Fund. The following key areas support delivery of the MTFS and have been considered during the
development of the budget:

e Fees and Charges

e Value for Money

e Inward Economic Development

e Leisure Strategy

e Digital Strategy

e Asset Management

e Seven Arches Investment Limited business plan

e Other Regeneration Developments

The ongoing viability of these initiatives will need to be reassessed to evaluate their viability given the ongoing
impact of the pandemic. Services will need to continue to achieve efficiencies and continually review their
working practices and operations to make them as efficient as possible.

Leisure Strategy Investments propose to seek future revenue savings, subject to Individual business cases
being finalised and brought to committee for approval. The Asset Development Programme realises the
potential of the Council’s property asset base but at the same time securing the regeneration, economic
development, and housing objectives of the Council. This is provided in three different streams.

Corporate Risk Management
The Council maintains Strategic, Operational and Project risk registers to enable it to manage the risks which
could impact on its ability to achieve its objectives. The risks reported to Committee in March 2021 were:

Risk Score
Roll out of Universal Credit V High (16)
Local Development Plan V.High (15)
Brexit High (12)
Failure to deliver a clear Leisure Strategy High (12)
Failure to deliver key Corporate Projects High (12)
Finance Pressures High (10)
Disaster Recover/Continuity Planning Med (8)
Commercial Activities Med (8)
Information Management and Security Med (8)
Contract/Partnership Failure Med (8)
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Eﬁaixlrl]”e to deliver the Council's Strategic Development Med (8)
Organisational Capacity Med (6)
Treasury Management Med (5)
Lack of strategic Direction Low (4)

Performance Measurement

The Council measures its performance using a range of performance indicators, split across the various service
areas of the Council. These indicators have been chosen as they represent a cross section of the key services
delivered to the residents of the Borough. Their purpose is:

e To enable local residents and businesses to gauge the performance of the Council.
e To enable departmental managers to manage their service areas more effectively, including intervening
in areas where performance is identified as below target.

The Council's key performance indicators are reported to Members at the meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny
Committee on a quarterly basis and are available to view and download from the Brentwood Council
Document Library: https://document.brentwood.gov.uk/document library.php

The 2020/21 Statement of Accounts
The Council has prepared the 2020/21 Accounts on a going concern basis, despite the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.

In addition, the key assumptions and critical judgements about future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty have been updated to take account of the ongoing impact of the pandemic, including with regard
to the valuation of Council assets.

Operational and Financial impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a fundamental impact on the provision of council services, in terms of the
temporary and brief suspension of the refuse collection and recycling services, the suspension of other
services under government regulations, for example golf course facilities the multi storey carpark due to social
distancing rules, the redeployment of staff to support key services, financial reporting and performance and
day to day governance.

Given the scale of the issues raised by the pandemic, this section of the narrative statement commentary
focuses on the impact that it has had and will continue to have on the Council's future operations.

Like every other Local Authority, the Council entered the lockdown phase of the country's COVID-19 mitigation
in the last few weeks of its financial year. Decisions were taken to close offices and to suspend some services
on a temporary basis, such as garden waste collection, in order to safeguard council employees and the
community. A Tactical Coordination group was set up with sub-groups to focus on key areas of response.
Business continuity plans were also activated, to enable critical services to be delivered to vulnerable residents
in the community, especially those being shielded.

11
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In April 2020 terms of reference for an Emergency Committee was approved so any emergency decisions could
be responded to quickly throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. This was conducted virtually using appropriate
ICT software. All other committees except Audit & Scrutiny Committee and Planning & Licensing Committee
were also approved to be suspended until after the Summer. The Monitoring officer agreed to call an
Emergency Committee in June to approve the Council’s Discretionary Business Grant Scheme.

Guidance and support have been distributed in the form of 35,000 community support handbooks distributed,
the Councils has had 20,000 views on its specific webpage for Coronavirus. The Council has distributed leaflets
to residents and a community hub was set up to support vulnerable families and individuals. The council
liaised with various charities to support foodbanks and key workers in the borough.

The Council continues to administer grants to businesses affected by lockdown and individuals required to
self-isolate, under the range of COVID-19 relief measures announced by Central Government. As at 22 June
2021 the Council had distributed grants totalling £32.5m. The Council also administered business rates reliefs
totalling £12m in 2020/21 to local businesses. The Council has been fully reimbursed by Central Government
for all of these grants.

As the situation eases, the vast majority of council staff are working from home supported by ICT services,
which has enabled staff to access the relevant data and emails to continue not only with day-to-day business
but also to respond and arrange changes required to service delivery.

Council services continue to be delivered following relevant social distancing and health and safety rules and
certain services continue to be operated in an enhanced method to protect vulnerable residents; for example
the community hub and the additional cleaning and housekeeping facilities required at the council's
residential sheltered schemes.

A service recovery and transformation team continues to monitor and implement required changes to the
Council's operations, both for staff and residents.

As at the date of these accounts, the Council had received £0.882m from the government to cover the
additional costs of COVID-19. In addition to this the Council was able to claim £1.106 million through the
income compensation scheme.

On a monthly basis the Council formally update the government on the financial impact of COVID-19, both in
terms of additional costs, loss of service related income and Collection Fund income. Internally various
briefings with staff and members have taken place to inform the Council’s employees and members of its
financial position.

Since the budget was set in March 2020, the emergence of Covid-19 has fundamentally changed the financial
regime for at least the 2020/21 financial year. The Council has carried out a detailed assessment of the likely
impact of COVID-19 on its financial position and performance during 2019/20, 2020/21 and beyond. This
included consideration of the following: -

¢ Loss of income on a service-by-service basis, due to temporary closures, reduction in demand, and
increased collection losses.

e Additional expenditure on a service by service basis, e.g. provision of new and expanded services in
response to the crisis (such as the provision of a Community Hub to support vulnerable residents, and
the publication of guidance at the start of the crisis to all Residents in the Borough), and additional
costs associated with changes to working practices ( for example refuse collection working
arrangements, remote working for Officers and Members and the adaption of Council operational
sites to comply with additional Health and Safety requirements for staff and visitors).
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¢ Changes to government policy, e.g., changes to business rate reliefs, guidance on supplier relief,
additional administration for the distribution of grants to businesses as an agent of Central
Government Policy, additional funding for local authorities, and additional responsibilities which sit
alongside this.

e The impact on the Council’s capital programme, e.g., delays caused by government restrictions on
social distancing, and whether there is a need to rephase work for other reasons. The impact on the
Council’s subsidiaries and joint ventures.

e The impact of all of the above on the Council’s cash flow and treasury management, including
availability of liquid cash, impact on investment returns, and availability of external borrowing if
required.

e The estimated overall impact on the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account reserves,
going forward.

This review has highlighted that COVID-19 poses a significant financial challenge for the Council in the short to
medium term, as it will for all local authorities. To reflect this, the Council has continually monitored the
financial impact of COVID-19, reporting regularly to the Senior Leadership Team, Members and Central
Government. The first quarter’s General and HRA fund position including the impact of COVID-19 and the
financial impact of existing services was reported in July 2020 followed by a further update in December 2020.
The Council published its revised Medium Term Financial Strategy February 2021. This strategy addressed the
COVID impact on 20/21 and the uncertainties the Council faces for 2021/22 onwards.

The impact of the pandemic resulted in the Brentwood Leisure Trust falling into liquidation. The Trust
managed the Brentwood Centre and provided the leisure facility in the borough. The Centre came back into
Council operation in November 2020. Leisure and hospitality services have been significantly impacted during
the pandemic and the centre was able to operate for 3 weeks under the Council’s control before another
lockdown was imposed. The Centre opened once again in April 2021 with full operation able in May 2021. It
continues to operate a testing and vaccination centre for COVID-19

The Council recognises that despite the impact of COVID-19 the financial position has remained sound throughout
2020/21 to date. In February 2021, a detailed report to update the Medium-Term Financial Plan was published
showing the Council forecasts that it can maintain a General Fund position over the next 3 years that ensures the
Council's Minimum Reserve Balances do not fall below £2.5 million. The Council’s ability to achieve this and maintain
the level of service provision assumed by the Medium-Term Financial Plan will depend on the extent and duration of
current income losses, its ability to refinance debt, the cost of replacement borrowing and its ability to borrow
further should there be a need to do so. The Council is undertaking a programme of work to identify saving concepts
which will help address projected funding gaps beyond 2022/23. The Council remains satisfied that there is no
material uncertainty over its ability to deliver the required service provision.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Council's Responsibilities
The Council is required to:

e Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the
Director of Corporate Resources.

e Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and to safeguard its
assets.

e Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (“the Code”)

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Corporate Resources has:

e selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
e made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent
e complied with the Code

The Section 151 Officer has also:
e kept proper accounting records that were up to date
e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Certification by Director of Corporate Resources

The Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March
2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

Jacqueline Van Mellaerts CPFA, Corporate Director (Finance & Resources) & S151 Officer
30 November 2022

Certification by the Chair of the Committee approving the accounts

'/"' -
Councillor Thomas Heard
Chair of Audit & Scrutiny Committee

30 November 2022
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

Introduction
The Code of Practice requires local authorities with material interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures to prepare group accounts in addition to their own single entity financial statement.

The purpose of the group accounts presented on the following pages is to provide a picture of Brentwood
Borough Council and the company that is controlled by the Council. The group accounts demonstrate the full
extent of the Council’s wider asset and liabilities, and its exposure to risk through interests in another entity
and participation in the activities of that entity. The group accounts provide transparency and enable
comparison with other entities that have similar corporate arrangements.

Seven Arches Investments Ltd
The Council has an interest in one company, Seven Arches Investments Ltd (SAIL).

The company was formed on 12 April 2018 as a commercial investment vehicle for the Council. Its principal
activity is to invest in regeneration, redevelopment and the management of both residential & commercial
assets within the Borough. This will continue to be its purpose for the foreseeable future.

The Council owns 100% of the company’s shares, and two direct employees of the Council, the Corporate
Finance Manager and the Strategic Director (Deputy Chief Executive), sit on the SAIL Management Board as
directors with voting rights. The Board also consists of a third, non-voting director and two non -executive
directors, both appointed during 2020.

SAIL is classified as a subsidiary of the Council and is considered to be material to the financial statements.

SAIL’s company number is 11306245, and its registered office is: Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, CM15
8AY. The company’s auditors are MJ Bushell Ltd.

Seven Arches Investments Ltd holds 50% shares in a joint venture partnership, Brentwood Development
Partnership LLP.

Content of the Group Accounts
The following pages include:
e Group Movement in Reserves Statement

e Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
e Group Balance Sheet

e Group Cash Flow Statement

e Notes to the Group Accounts

e Joint Venture
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the Council’s single entity usable and unusable reserves,

together with the SAIL Retained Earnings Reserve:

Held for Revenue Purposes

Held for Capital Purposes

Brentwood Borough Council

Statement of Accounts for year ending 31 March 2021

General Earmarked Housing Earmarked| Capital Capital Major Total |Unusable| Total | Authority | Total
Fund General  Revenue HRA Receipts  Grants  Repairs | Usable |Reserves|Authority| Share of [Reserves
Balance Fund Account Reserves | Reserve Unapplied Reserve [Reserves Reserves | Subsidiary
Reserves (HRA) Account Reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,117 4,404 1,071 2,400 2,065 751 6,345| 20,153 | 193,981 214,134 (1,653)| 212,481
Movement in reserves during 2020/21:
Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services (1,407) 0 3,242 0 0 0 0 1,835 0 1,835 1,035 2,870
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 19,873 19,873 (3,962)| 15,911
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (1,407) 0 3,242 0 0 0 0 1,835 19,873 | 21,708 (2,927)| 18,781
Transfer of recharges from General Fund to HRA 1,696 0 (1,696) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adjustments between group and authority accounts 1,285 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,285 0 1,285 (1,285) (1]
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 4,562 0 (1,137) 0 539 260 128 4,352| (4,352) 0 0 (1]
basis under regulations
Total movement in reserves during 2020/21 6,136 0 409 0 539 260 128 7,472 15,521 22,993 (4,212)| 18,781
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (6,379) 6,379 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2021 2,874 10,783 1,480 2,400 2,604 1,011 6,473 | 27,625| 209,502 | 237,127 (5,864)| 231,263
Held for Revenue Purposes Held for Capital Purposes
General Earmarked Housing Earmarked| Capital Capital Major Total |Unusable| Total | Authority [ Total
Fund General  Revenue HRA Receipts  Grants Repairs | Usable |Reserves|Authority| Share of |Reserves
Balance Fund Account Reserves | Reserve Unapplied Reserve |Reserves Reserves | Subsidiary
Reserves (HRA) Account Reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2019 3,117 4,821 1,901 2,400 3,167 680 4,326| 20,412 189,845| 210,257 (691)| 209,566
Movement in reserves during 2019/20:
Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services (4,210) 0 (330) 0 0 0 0| (4,540) 0| (4,540) (679)| (5,219)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,134 8,134 0 8,134
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (4,210) 0 (330) 0 0 0 0| (4,540) 8,134 3,594 (679) 2,915
Transfer of recharges from General Fund to HRA 1,670 0 (1,670) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adjustments between group and authority accounts 283 283 0 283 (283) 0
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 1,840 0 1,170 0| (1,102) 71 2,019 3,998 | (3,998) 0 0 0
basis under regulations
Total movement in reserves during 2020/21 (417) 0 (830) o (1,102) 71 2,019 (259) 4,136 3,877 (962) 2,915
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves 417 (417) 0 0 0 0 0 (1] 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,117 4,404 1,071 2,400 2,065 751  6345| 20,153| 193,981| 214,134 (1,653)] 212,481




GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the income and expenditure of the Group during the financial year

2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income  Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £/000 £'000 £'000
Growing Our Economy 2,263 (1,036) 1,227 5,507 (3,821) 1,686
Protecting Our Environment 8,145 (5,399) 2,746 10,589 (4,682) 5,907
Developing Our Communities 1,810 (539) 1,271 2,821 (1,053) 1,768
Improving Housing 1,291 (881) 410 782 (871) (89)
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 19,347 (12,433) 6,914 19,741 (12,537) 7,204
Commercial Activity 728 (911) (183) 1,520 (2,546) (1,026)
Housing Revenue Account 11,189 (12,927) (1,738) 8,602 (13,185) (4,583)
Cost of Services 44,773 (34,126) 10,647 49,562 (38,695) 10,867
Other operating expenditure 738 (180) 558 1,236 (888) 348
Financing and investment income & 4,568 (1,309) 3,259 4,579 (479) 4,100
expenditure
Taxation and non-specific grant income & 0 (9,245) (9,245) 0 (18,185) (18,185)
expenditure
(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 50,079 (44,860) 5,219 55,377 (58,247) (2,870)
Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of non
current assets 0 (5,655) (5,655) 7,420 (25,786) (18,366)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 0 (2,479) (2,479) 2,455 0 2,455
pension liability
Other Comprehensive Income and 0 (8,134) (8,134) 9,875 (25,786) (15,911)
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and 50,079 (52,994) (2,915) 65,252 (84,033) (18,781)
Expenditure
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

This statement summarises the financial position of the group at 31 March 2021:

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

Note £'000 £'000
Property, Plant and Equipment:-

Council dwellings 261,461 277,873

Other Land and Buildings 32,811 129,051

Vehicles, plant and equipment 2,495 3,938

Infrastructure 1,133 1,159

Community Assets 2,937 2,937

Surplus Assets 1,707 3,183

Assets Under Construction 720 3,814

303,264 421,955

Intangible Assets 115 66

2 Investment Property 29,138 69,685

Long-term Debtors 585 314

Long-term Assets 333,102 492,020

Short-term Investments 10 0

Inventories 238 110

3 Short-term Debtors 6,612 16,370

Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,263 24,098

Current Assets 27,123 40,578

Short-term Borrowing (35,122) (129,950)

4 Short-term Creditors (6,172) (18,549)

Provisions (1,968) (1,527)

Receipts in Advance - Revenue (1,454) (2,732)

Current Liabilities (44,716) (152,758)

Long-term Borrowing (61,347) (103,362)

Grants Receipts in Advance (1,844) (2,002)

Net Pension Liability (39,837) (43,213)

Long-term Liabilities (103,028) (148,577)

Net Assets 212,481 231,263
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

Note £'000 £'000
General Fund Balance 3,117 2,874
Housing Revenue Account Balance 1,071 1,480
Capital Receipts Reserve 2,065 2,604
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 751 1,011
Major Repairs Reserve 6,345 6,473
Earmarked Reserves 6,804 13,183
SAIL Retained Earnings Account (1,653) (5,864)
Usable Reserves 18,500 21,761
Revaluation Reserve 110,226 130,776
Capital Adjustment Account 123,821 127,486
Deferred Capital Receipts 308 300
Pension Reserve (39,837) (43,213)
Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (88) (169)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (449) (5,678)
Unusable Reserves 193,981 209,502
Total Reserves 212,481 231,263

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by the Director of Corporate
Resources on 29 July 2021.

Jacqueline Van Mellaerts CPFA, Corporate Director (Finance & Resources) & S151 Officer
30 November 2022
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

This statement summarises the cash flows in and out of the group during the financial year:

2019/20 2020/21
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net deficit on the provision of services 5,219 (2,870)
Adjustments for non cash movements:-
Depreciation of non current assets (4,056) (3,892)
Amortisation of intangible assets (254) (147)
Revaluation adjustments (3,056) 1,073
(Increase)/decrease in bad debts provision (415) (148)
(Increase)/decrease in creditors (1,122) (15,208)
Increase/(decrease) in debtors 696 3,737
Increase/(decrease) in inventories 181 (128)
Movement in pension liabilities (862) (920)
Amounts transferred to Collection Fund Adjustment Account (67) (5,229)
Amounts transferred to Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (2) (81)
Carrying amounts of non-current assets sold (355) (970)
Donated Asset 0 6,060
(Increase)/decrease in provisions (387) 442
Increase/(decrease) in value of investment properties (119) 39,141
Other non cash movements 5 (27)
Total adjustments for non cash movements (9,813) 23,703
Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets 506 1,858
Capital Grants 429 605
Total adjustment for investing or financing activities 935 2,463
Net cash in-flow from Operating Activities (3,659) 23,296
Investing Activities:-
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 10,844 98,111
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment (506) (1,858)
Proceeds from short term investments (1,990) (120)
(increase)/decrease in capital grants (1,743) (642)
6,605 95,601
Financing Activities:-
Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing (37,000) (236,500)
Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing 13,942 99,673
Decrease/(increase) in Collection Fund Agency balances (601) 14,095
(23,659) (122,732)
Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (20,713) (3,835)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (450) 20,263
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 20,263 24,098
Movement in cash & cash equivalents 20,713 3,835
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

Group Accounting Policies

The Group Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. The Council has consolidated its interests in the entity over which
it exercises control or significant influence because they are material to the Council’s balance sheet. The
accounts of the Council’s subsidiary, Seven Arches Investments Ltd (SAIL). have been consolidated on a line by
line basis. Intra-group transactions have been eliminated before consolidation.

The Accounting Policies used in the preparation of the Group Accounts are the same as for the single entity
accounts of Brentwood Borough Council, as set out in note 41 of the Notes to the Core Statement of Accounts.
In following these policies and reporting requirements as determined by CIPFA, the group disclosures may
differ from the disclosures in the company accounts of SAIL.

Notes for the Group Financial Statements are provided below on the areas that have changed materially
on consolidation of the SAIL accounts into the Council’s accounts.

2. Investment Properties
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Commercial Land Total Commercial Land Total
Premises Premises

Balance at start of the year 18,432 2,931 21,363 26,145 2,993 29,138
Acquired during the year 0 0 0 43,787 0 43,787

Net gains from fair value adjustments
- through Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account (181) 62 (119) (4,646) 0 (4,646)
- through Revaluation Reserve (213) 0 (213) 0 0 0
Transfers from Assets Under Construction 6,746 0 6,746 1,406 0 1,406
Transfers from Land & Buildings & Surplus Assets 1,361 0 1,361 0 0 0
Balance at end of the year 26,145 2,993 29,138 66,692 2,993 69,685

The revaluations were carried out by Wilks Head Eve, an independent firm of Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) registered valuers in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in
the professional standards of the RICS, and in the CIPFA Code.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

3.

4.

5.

Debtors
31 March 2020 31 March 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross Debt Impairment  Net Debt Gross Debt Impairment Net Debt
Allowance Allowance

Trade receivables 1,957 (78) 1,879 598 (99) 499
Housing rents arrears 1,475 (974) 501 1,584 (1,111) 473
Financial assets at contract amounts 3,432 (1,052) 2,380 2,182 (1,210) 972
Central Government 973 0 973 8,863 0 8,863
Other local authorities 1,463 0 1,463 4,338 0 4,338
Council tax arrears 535 (246) 289 678 (246) 432
Non domestic rates arrears 1,006 (473) 533 1,452 (551) 901
Other sundry receivables 1,714 (1,074) 640 1,353 (1,063) 290
Prepayments 334 0 334 574 0 574
Total 9,457 (2,845) 6,612 19,440 (3,070) 16,370

Creditors

Trade payables

Central Government
Other local authorities
Council tax pre-payments

Other sundry payables
Receipts in advance

Total

Non domestic rates pre-payments

Financial liabilities at contract amounts

31 March 31 March
2020 2021
£'000 £'000
2,316 7,769
2,316 7,769
836 7,817
754 507
132 111
253 489
728 802
1,153 1,054
6,172 18,549

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases out premises under operating leases in order to generate a rental income. The minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

Not later than one year

Later than five years
Total

Later than one year and not later than five years

31 March 31 March
2020 2021
£'000 £'000
1,276 3,875
4,666 14,850
5,999 23,043
11,941 41,768

Brentwood Borough Council
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

7. Joint Venture
SAIL has a 50% holding in a joint venture (JV), Brentwood Development Partnership LLP, formed in July 2019.
The purpose of the JV is to assisting Brentwood Borough Council in meeting its objectives in regenerating the
residential, leisure, social and commercial infrastructure within the Borough.

The ownership of the private sector partnership interest in the JV transferred during 2020/21 from the original
partner, Morgan Sindall Investments Ltd, to Muse Developments Ltd (part of the Morgan Sindall plc group).

The JV has identified a number of sites within the Borough for redevelopment, and it is anticipated that the
first redevelopment activity will commence in 2021/22.

At the date of these accounts, the JV was operating at a loss due to the pre-development costs associated with
the various sites. The JV prepares its accounts on a calendar year basis, and the cumulative deficit as at 31
December 2020 was £0.275m, which was funded by a loan of £0.660m by the private sector partner. The
arrangement is that when profits materialise from the developments, the loans will be recouped, and the
remaining profits will be distributed on a 50:50 basis between the two partners.

The operating costs, assets and liabilities of the JV have not been consolidated into the group accounts, on the
basis that the up-front costs were being funded by the partner as at the date of these accounts.
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CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement from the start to the end of the year on the different reserves held by
the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other “unusable reserves”. The Statement analyses the movements in year between gains and
losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments
required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax and housing rent income for the year. The
balance at 31 March 2021 line shows the statutory General Fund balance and Housing Revenue Account
balance following these adjustments.

Movement in Reserves Statement 2020/21

Held for Revenue Purposes Held for Capital Purposes
General Earmarked Housing Earmarked| Capital Capital Major Total |Unusable| Total
Fund General  Revenue HRA Receipts  Grants Repairs | Usable |Reserves|Reserves
Balance Fund Account Reserves | Reserve Unapplied Reserve |Reserves
Reserves (HRA) Account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,117 4,404 1,071 2,400 2,065 751 6,345 20,153 | 193,981 | 214,134
Movement in reserves during 2020/21:
Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services (122) 0 3,241 0 0 0 0 3,119 0 3,119
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,873 19,873
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (122) 0 3,241 0 0 0 0 3,119 19,873 22,992
Transfer of recharges from General Fund to HRA 1,696 0 (1,696) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 4,562 0 (1,136) 0 539 260 128 4,353 | (4,353) 0
basis under regulations (note 4)
Total movement in reserves during 2020/21 6,136 0 409 0 539 260 128 7,472 15,520 22,992
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (note 5) (6,379) 6,379 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2021 2,874 10,783 1,480 2,400 2,604 1,011 6,473 27,625 | 209,502 | 237,127

Movement in Reserves Statement 2019/20

Held for Revenue Purposes Held for Capital Purposes
General Earmarked Housing Earmarked| Capital Capital Major Total [Unusable| Total
Fund General  Revenue HRA Receipts  Grants Repairs | Usable |Reserves|Reserves
Balance Fund Account Reserves | Reserve Unapplied Reserve |Reserves
Reserves (HRA) Account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2019 3,117 4,821 1,901 2,400 3,167 680 4,326 20,412 | 189,845 210,257
Movement in reserves during 2020/21:
Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services (3,927) 0 (330) 0 0 0 0| (4,257) 0| (4,257)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,134 8,134
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (3,927) 0 (330) 0 0 0 0| (4,257) 8,134 3,877
Transfer of recharges from General Fund to HRA 1,670 0 (1,670) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 1,840 0 1,170 0| (1,102) 71 2,019 3,998 | (3,998) 0
basis under regulations (note 4)
Total movement in reserves during 2020/21 (417) 0 (830) o (1,102) 71 2,019 (259) 4,136 3,877
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (note 5) 417 (417) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,117 4,404 1,071 2,400 2,065 751 6,345 20,153 | 193,981 | 214,134
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CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — COMPRENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices, rather than the statutory amounts to be funded from taxation. Councils raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.
The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income  Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £7000 £000

Note

Growing Our Economy 2,263 (1,036) 1,227 5,507 (3,821) 1,686

Protecting Our Environment 8,145 (5,399) 2,746 10,589 (4,654) 5,935

Developing Our Communities 1,810 (539) 1,271 2,821 (1,053) 1,768

Improving Housing 1,291 (881) 410 782 (871) (89)

Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 19,348 (12,155) 7,193 19,741 (11,957) 7,784

Housing Revenue Account 11,189 (12,927) (1,738) 8,602 (13,185) (4,583)

Cost of Services 44,046 (32,937) 11,109 48,042 (35,541) 12,501
6 Other operating expenditure 738 (180) 558 1,236 (888) 348
7 Financing and investment income & 3,701 (1,866) 1,835 4,583 (2,366) 2,217

expenditure
8 Taxation and non-specific grant income & 0 (9,245) (9,245) 0 (18,185) (18,185)

expenditure

Deficit on Provision of Services 48,485 (44,228) 4,257 53,861 (56,980) (3,119)
21 Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of non

current assets 0 (5,655) (5,655) 3,497 (25,825) (22,328)
40 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 0 (2,479) (2,479) 2,455 0 2,455

pension liability

Other Comprehensive Income and 0 (8,134) (8,134) 5,952 (25,825) (19,873)

Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and 48,485 (52,362) (3,877) 59,813 (82,805) (22,992)

Expenditure
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CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Council. The net assets of the Council are matched by the reserves that it holds. Reserves are reported in two
categories. The first category is usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use.
The second category is unusable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may not use to provide services.
These include reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line “Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations”.

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

Note £'000 £'000
9 Property, Plant and Equipment:-

Council dwellings 261,461 277,873

Other Land and Buildings 32,811 129,051

Vehicles, plant and equipment 2,495 3,938

Infrastructure 1,133 1,159

Community Assets 2,937 2,937

Surplus Assets 1,707 3,183

Assets Under Construction 720 3,814

303,264 421,955

11 Intangible Assets 115 66

13 Investment Property 17,398 16,714

14 Long-term Debtors 33,085 60,314

Long-term Assets 353,862 499,049

15 Short-term Investments 10 0

Inventories 238 110

16 Short-term Debtors 5,095 17,063

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,220 21,223

Current Assets 7,563 38,396

15 Short-term Borrowing (35,122) (129,950)

18 Short-term Creditors (5,719) (17,498)

17 Cash Overdrawn 0 0

32 Receipts in Advance - Revenue (1,454) (2,795)

19 Provisions (1,968) (1,527)

Current Liabilities (44,263) (151,770)

15 Long-term Borrowing (61,347) (103,333)

32 Grants Receipts in Advance (1,844) (2,002)

40 Net Pension Liability (39,837) (43,213)

Long-term Liabilities (103,028) (148,548)

Net Assets 214,134 237,127
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CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — BALANCE SHEET

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

Note £'000 £'000
20 General Fund Balance 3,117 2,874
20 Housing Revenue Account Balance 1,071 1,480
20 Capital Receipts Reserve 2,065 2,604
20 Capital Grants Unapplied Account 751 1,011
4 Major Repairs Reserve 6,345 6,473
5 Earmarked Reserves 6,804 13,183
Usable Reserves 20,153 27,625

21 Revaluation Reserve 110,226 130,776
22 Capital Adjustment Account 123,821 127,486
23 Deferred Capital Receipts 308 300
24 Pension Reserve (39,837) (43,213)
25 Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (88) (169)
26 Collection Fund Adjustment Account (449) (5,678)
Unusable Reserves 193,981 209,502

Total Reserves 214,134 237,127

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by the Director of Corporate
Resources on 29 July 2021.

Jacqueline Van Mellaerts CPFA, Corporate Director (Finance & Resources) & S151 Officer
30 November 2022
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CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in the Council’s cash and cash equivalents during the reporting
period. It classifies cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the Council’s activities are funded
from taxation, grant income and charges for services. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources intended to contribute to the Council’s future cash delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of

capital to the Council.

2019/20 2020/21
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net deficit on the provision of services 4,257 (3,119)
Adjustments for non cash movements:-
Depreciation of non current assets (4,056) (3,892)
Amortisation of intangible assets (254) (147)
Revaluation adjustments (3,056) (2,850)
(Increase)/decrease in bad debts provision (415) (148)
(Increase)/decrease in creditors (780) (13,800)
Increase/(decrease) in debtors 18,325 31,158
Increase/(decrease) in inventories 181 (128)
Movement in pension liabilities (862) (920)
Amounts transferred to Collection Fund Adjustment Account (67) (5,229)
Amounts transferred to Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (2) (81)
Carrying amounts of non-current assets sold (355) (970)
(Increase)/decrease in provisions (550) 442
Increase/(decrease) in value of investment properties 748 (684)
Donated asset 0 6,060
Other non cash movements (25) (27)
Total adjustments for non cash movements 8,832 8,784
Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets 535 1,858
Capital Grants 429 605
Total adjustment for investing or financing activities 964 2,463
Net cash in-flow from Operating Activities 14,053 8,128
Investing Activities:-
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 10,844 98,111
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment (506) (1,858)
Proceeds from short term investments (1,990) (10)
Net (increase)/decrease in capital grants (1,743) (642)
6,605 95,601
Financing Activities:-
Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing (37,000) (236,500)
Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing 13,942 99,673
Decrease/(increase) in Collection Fund Agency balances (601) 14,095
(23,659) (122,732)
Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,001) (19,003)
17 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (781) 2,220
17  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 2,220 21,223
Movement in cash & cash equivalents 3,001 19,003

Brentwood Borough Council

28

Statement of Accounts for year ending 31 March 2021




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - INDEX

Notes to the Core Financial Statements Page

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

1 Expenditure Funding & Analysis 30-31

Note to the Expenditure & Funding Analysis 32-33
3a Expenditure and funding analysed by nature 34
3b Revenue from contracts with service recipients 34-35
4  Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation 36-37
5 Transfers to/from earmarked reserves 37-40
6 Other Operating Expenditure 40
7 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 40
8 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 41

Balance Sheet

9 Property, Plant and Equipment 41-43
10 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 44
11 Intangible Assets 45
12 Heritage Assets 45
13 Investment properties 45-46
14 Longterm debtors 46
15 Financial instruments 46-48
16 Debtors 48
17 Cash and cash equivalents 48
18 Creditors 49
19 Provisions 49-50
20 Usable reserves 50
21 Revaluation Reserve 50
22 Capital Adjustment Account 51
23 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 51
24 Pensions Reserve 52
25 Accumulating Absences Adjustment Account 52
26 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 52

Other notes

27 Trading operations 53
28 Members'allowances 53
29 Officers' remuneration 53-56
30 Termination benefits 56
31 External Audit costs 56
32 Grantincome -2
33 Related parties 59-61
34 Leases 61-62
35 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 62
36 Events after the balance sheet date 62
37 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 63-64
38 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 65-66
uncertainty
39 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 67

Pension liabilities
40 Defined benefit pension schemes 68-74

Accounting Policies
41 Significant accounting policies 75-89

29
Brentwood Borough Council Statement of Accounts for year ending 31 March 2021



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Expenditure and Funding Analysis
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It
also shows how this expenditure is allocated on the Council’s spending priorities in line with its Corporate
Strategy, Brentwood 2025. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting
practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The figures in the Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund and HRA Balance column align to the
outturn report taken to the Council’s Audit & Scrutiny Committee.

2020/21 . .
Net Expenditure Adjustments between
Chargeable to the General Funding and Accounting Net Expenditure in the CIES
Fund and HRA Balance Basis

Service £000 £000 £000
Growing Our Economy 1,507 179 1,686
Protecting Our Environment 2,189 3,746 5,935
Developing Our Communities 1,375 393 1,768
Improving Housing 70 (159) (89)
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 5,733 2,051 7,784
Housing Revenue Account (409) (4,174) (4,583)
Net Cost of Services 10,465 2,036 12,501
Other income & expenditure Total (10,631) (4,989) (15,620)
Deficit/(surplus) (166) (2,953) (3,119)
Opening General Fund and HRA Balance
at 31 March 2020* (10,992)
Add (Surplus) on General Fund and HRA balance in year (166)
Add transfer from Income & Expenditure to Earmarked Reserves (6,379)
Closing General Fund and HRA Balance
at 31 March 2021* (17,537)

* For a split of the closing balance between the General Fund and the HRA, see the Movement in Reserves Statement on
page 24.
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1. Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)
2019/20 " .
Net Expenditure Adjustments between
Chargeable to the General Funding and Accounting Net Expenditure in the CIES
Fund and HRA Balance Basis

Service £000 £000 £000
Growing Our Economy 768 459 1,227
Protecting Our Environment 1,246 1,500 2,746
Developing Our Communities 650 621 1,271
Improving Housing 46 364 410
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 5,757 1,436 7,193
Housing Revenue Account 830 (2,568) (1,738)
Net Cost of Services 9,297 1,812 11,109
Other income & expenditure Total (8,467) 1,614 (6,852)
Deficit 830 3,426 4,257
Opening General Fund and HRA Balance
at 31 March 2019* (12,239)
Less Deficit on General Fund and HRA balance in year 830
Less transfer to Income & Expenditure from Earmarked Reserves 417
Closing General Fund and HRA Balance
at 31 March 2020* (10,992)

* For a split of the closing balance between the General Fund and the HRA, see the Movement in Reserves Statement
on page 24.

31
Brentwood Borough Council Statement of Accounts for year ending 31 March 2021



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2. Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 2020/21

Adjustments for Net Change for Other Differences Total Adjustments
Capital Purposes  the Pensions

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Growing Our Economy 0 159 20 179
Protecting Our Environment 2,681 465 600 3,746
Developing Our Communities 158 100 135 393
Improving Housing (244) 66 19 (159)
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council 834 177 1,040 2,051
Housing Revenue Account (1,307) 156 (3,023) (4,174)
Net Cost of Services 2,122 1,123 (1,209) 2,036
Other Income & Expenditure (1,304) (248) (3,437) (4,989)
Total 818 875 (4,646) (2,953)

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 2019/20

Adjustments for Net Change for Other Differences Total Adjustments
Capital Purposes  the Pensions

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Growing Our Economy 2 201 256 459
Protecting Our Environment 511 667 322 1,500
Developing Our Communities 402 136 83 621
Improving Housing 201 104 59 364
Delivering An Efficient & Effective Council (166) 110 1,492 1,436
Housing Revenue Account 1,041 130 (3,739) (2,568)
Net Cost of Services 1,991 1,348 (1,527) 1,812
Other Income & Expenditure 87 (486) 2,013 1,614
Total 2,078 862 486 3,426
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2.

Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Adjustments for Capital Purposes
This column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

* Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of
assets and the amounts written off for those assets

* Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for capital financing, i.e.
Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and
expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices

* Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are adjusted for income not
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those
receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with
capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustment
This is the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits
pensions related expenditure and income:

* for services, this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the Council as
allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs

* for Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined benefit liability is
charged to the CIES

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

* the charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference
between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates that was
projected to be received at the start of the year, and the income recognised under generally accepted
accounting practices. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future
Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.
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3a. Expenditure & Income Analysed by Nature
The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2019/20 2020/21

Expenditure £'000 £'000
Employee benefits expenses 11,816 12,418
Other services expenses 25,356 28,668
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment (note 9) 7,366 7,573
Interest payments 3,209 3,966
Precepts & levies (note 6) 549 576
Payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool (note 6) 189 660
Total expenditure 48,485 53,861
Income
Fees, charges and other service income

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients (note 3b) (19,519) (19,075)

- Otherincome (1,733) (1,512)
Interest and investment income (note 7) (645) (1,956)
Income from council tax and non domestic rates (7,056) (2,113)
Grants and contributions (note 31) (14,347) (25,376)
Gain on revaluation of investment properties (note 14) (748) 0
Donated asset 0 (6,060)
Gain on the disposal of assets (note 7) (180) (888)
Total income (44,228) (56,980)
Deficit on the provision of services 4,257 (3,119)

3b. Revenue from Contract with Service Recipients
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for contracts with service

recipients:
31 March 31 March
2020 2021
£'000 £'000
Revenue from contracts with service recipients (19,519) (19,075)
Impairment of receivables (1) (29)
Total included in CIES (19,520) (19,104)
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3b. Revenue from Contract with Service Recipients (continued)

Amounts included in the Balance Sheet for contracts with service recipients:

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Receivables (included as debtors - see note 16) 945 965
Total included in Balance Sheet 945 965

The value of revenue that is expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the end of the year is as follows:

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Not later than one year (675) (506)
Later than one year 0 0
Total (675) (506)

4. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Council in the year, in accordance with proper accounting practice, to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure. The following is a description of the reserves against which the adjustments are made.

a)

b)

General Fund Balance

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which the Council’s receipts are paid, and out of which the
liabilities of the Council are met, except to the extent that statutory rules provide otherwise. These rules
can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund
Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance
therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or
on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover at the end of the
financial year). The balance is not available to be applied to funding Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
services.

Housing Revenue Account Balance

The HRA Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local authority council
housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains
the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act which is available to fund future
expenditure in connection with the Council's landlord function or (where in deficit) is required to be
recovered from tenants in future years.

Major Repairs Reserve

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve which controls an element of the capital
resources limited to capital expenditure on HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by
the HRA. The balance shows the capital resources which have yet to be applied at the year-end.
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4. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations (continued)

d) Capital Receipts Reserve
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to
finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be
applied for these purposes at the year-end.

e) Capital Grants Unapplied
The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards
capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of
the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant
terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and / or the financial year in which this
can take place.

2020/21 General Housing Capital Capital Major Total
Fund Revenue Receipts Grants Repairs
Balance Account Reserve Unapplied Reserve
Adjustments to Revenue Resources £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
& Income Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension costs (transferred to/from the Pensions Reserve) 765 156 0 0 0 921

Council Tax & NNDR (transfers to/from the Collection Fund 5,229 0 0 0 0 5,229
Adjustment Account

Holiday pay (transferred to/from to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 67 13 0 0 0 80
Reversal of entries relating to capital expenditure (charged to the

Capital Adjustment Account). (1,545) 3,492 0 0 0 1,947
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 4,516 3,661 0 0 0 8,177

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds to the Capital Receipts Reserve (10)  (1,848) 1,858 0 0 0
Payments to the government housing receipts pool 660 0 (660) 0 0 0
Transfer of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs Reserve 0 (2,949) 0 0 2,949 0
Capital Grants unapplied (604) 0 0 260 0 (344)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 46  (4,797) 1,198 260 2,949 (344)

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 0 (668) 0 0 (668)

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 0 0 0 (2,821) (2,821)

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 0 0 9 0 0 9

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 0 (659) 0 (2,821) (3,480)

Total Adjustments 4,562  (1,136) 539 260 128 4,353
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4. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations (continued)

2019/20 General Housing Capital Capital Major Total
Fund Revenue Receipts Grants Repairs
Balance Account Reserve Unapplied Reserve
Adjustments to Revenue Resources £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
& Income Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension costs (transferred to/from the Pensions Reserve) 731 131 0 0 0 862

Council Tax & NNDR (transfers to/from the Collection Fund 67 0 0 0 0 67
Adjustment Account

Holiday pay (transferred to/from to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 3 (1) 0 0 0 2
Reversal of entries relating to capital expenditure (charged to the 1,318 4,483 0 0 0 5,801
Capital Adjustment Account).

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 2,119 4,613 0 0 0 6,732

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds to the Capital Receipts Reserve (39) (497) 507 0 0 (29)
Payments to the government housing receipts pool 189 0 (189) 0 0 0
Transfer of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs Reserve 0 (2,946) 0 0 2,946 0
Capital Grants unapplied (429) 0 0 71 0 (358)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources (279) (3,443) 318 71 2,946 (387)

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 0 (1,517) 0 0 (1,517)
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 0 0 0 (927) (927)
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 0 0 97 0 0 97
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 0 (1,420) 0 (927) (2,347)
Total Adjustments 1,840 1,170  (1,102) 71 2,019 3,998

5. Transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts transferred to and from the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account
balances and earmarked reserves in 2020/21.

2019/20 2020/21
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Balance Transfers Internal Transfers Balance
at1April toCIES fromCIES at31 atl1April toCIES transfers fromCIES at31
2019 March 2020 March
2020 2021
General Fund £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Mitigation Reserves
Organisational Transformation 962 (962) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funding Volatility 1,705 (1,028) 668 1,345 1,345 (63) (198) 259 1,343
Housing Benefit Subsidy 150 0 0 150 150 0 0 0 150
Insurance and Risk Management 0 0 25 25 25 0 0 0 25
In Borough Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 426 426
Total Mitigation Reserves 2,817 (1,990) 693 1,520 1,520 (63) (198) 685 1,944
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2019/20 2020/21
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Balance Transfers Internal Transfers Balance
at1April toCIES fromCIES at31 atlApril toCIES transfers from CIES at31
2019 March 2020 March
2020 2021
General Fund £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Service Reserves
ICT Investment 100 0 0 100 100 0 (100) 0 0
Community Alarms 138 (26) 0 112 112 0 (112) 0 0
Asset Management 164 0 0 164 164 0 0 0 164
Electoral Registration 43 0 0 43 43 0 0 0 43
Economic Development 0 0 300 300 300 0 0 0 300
Building Control 1 (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Brentwood Community Fund 9 (7) 0 2 2 0 (2) 0 0
High Street Fund 0 0 200 200 200 0 0 0 200
Environmental Initiatives 0 0 100 100 100 (8) 0 0 92
Planning Enforcement 0 0 200 200 200 (70) 0 0 130
Service Investment and Initiatives 0 0 200 200 200 (4) 0 0 196
Legal Resource 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 100
Leisure Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 (200) 200 200 200
LGV Driver Training 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 10
Parking Strategy/MSCP Clean 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 21
Digital, Customer & Comms 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 134 134
Planning Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78 78
Election Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 70
Total Service Reserves 455 (34) 1,000 1,421 1,421 (282) 86 513 1,738
Specific Reserves
Waste Management 583 (24) 36 595 595 (190) 0 0 405
Dunton Hills Development 120 (105) 0 15 15 (15) 0 0 0
Nightingale Maintenance 306 (4) 0 302 302 (4) 0 0 298
Planning Delivery Grant 55 (2) 0 53 53 (53) 0 0 0
Preventing Homelessness 153 (34) 0 119 119 (19) 0 0 100
EU Exit Grant 118 0 35 153 153 0 (100) 0 53
Brentwood Community Hospital 45 (5) 0 40 40 0 0 0 40
Community Rights 38 0 0 38 38 0 0 0 38
Health and Wellbeing 55 0 6 61 61 0 0 20 81
Neighbourhood Plan 26 0 0 26 26 0 0 0 26
Land at Hanover House 16 (3) 0 13 13 (3) 0 0 10
Willowbrook Rosen Crescent 7 0 0 7 7 0 0 0 7
Play Area Grant 12 0 0 12 12 (12) 0 0 0
COVID-19 Support Grant 0 0 29 29 29 (29) 0 0 0
Leisure Strategy 15 (15) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Hardship Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 26
Open Data Funding to LA's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Total Specific Reserves 1,549 (192) 106 1,463 1,463 (325) (100) 47 1,085
COVID-19 Specific Reserves
ECC - Night Time Economy Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 14
New Burdens for SBSG (covid-19) 0 0 0 0 0 0 130 130
Discretionary scheme
New Burdens LADGF (covid-19) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 59 59
Test and Trace Admin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 50
New burdens CT Hardship Fund and BRR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 20
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 591 591
COVID 19 Volatility 0 0 0 0 0 0 212 200 412
NDR Collection Fund Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,740 4,740
Total COVID-19 Specific Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 212 5,804 6,016
Total General Fund Reserves 4,821 (2,216) 1,799 4,404 4,404 (670) 0 7,049 10,783
Housing Revenue Account Reserves
Council Dwellings Investment Fund 2,400 0 0 2,400 2,400 0 0 0 2,400
Total Housing Revenue Account Reserves 2,400 0 0 2,400 2,400 0 0 0 2,400
Total Earmarked Reserves 7,221 (2,216) 1,799 6,804 6,804 (670) 0 7,049 13,183
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Transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves (continued)

The following table sets out the purpose of each earmarked reserve:

General Fund Reserves

Mitigation Reserves
Organisational Transformation

Funding Volatility

Housing Benefit Subsidy
Insurance and Risk Management
In Borough Regeneration

Service Reserves

ICT Investment
Community Alarms
Asset Management
Electoral Registration
Economic Development
Building Control

Brentwood Community Fund
High Street Fund
Environmental Initiatives

Planning Enforcement
Service Investment and Initiatives

Legal Resources

Leisure Contingency

LGV Driver Training

Parking Strategy/MSCP Clean

Digital, Customer & Comms
Planning Development

Election Costs

Service Reserves

Waste Management
Dunton Hills Development
Nightingale Maintenance
Planning Delivery Grant
Preventing Homelessness

EU Exit Grant

Brentwood Community Hospital
Willowbrook Rosen Crescent
Community Rights

Play Area Grant

Health and Wellbeing
Neighbourhood Plan

Land at Hanover House
COVID-19 Support Grant
Leisure Strategy

Council Tax Hardship Fund
Open Data Funding to LA's

Purpose

The reserve was created to fund the Council's Organisional Transformation Programme. During 2019/20
it was used to fund one-off unforeseen expediture, with the balance transferred to new reserves set up
in line with the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan.

To mitigate the uncertainty and financial risks regarding the Fair Funding Review

To support the funding of subsidy claims and the implementation of Universal Credit.

To support and mitigate high risks identified through the corparate risk register.

To support the council's plans for regeneration in the borough.

To fund investment in the Council's ICT structure.

To fund the expansion of the community alarm service and the upgrading of the equipment .

To fund the costs of developing and implementing the Council's asset management programme.

To fund future changes to registration, and the implementation of the Canvass Reform 2020

To fund the development of the Council's Economic Development Strategy

A trading account which balances to zero over a period of three financial years. Any surplus is taken into
account when setting future years’ fees and charges.

To fund agreed community projects.

To aid corporate objectives for growing the economy in town and village centres

To develop environmental initiatives that will reduce carbon emissions, improve the environment and
reduce the Council's carbon footprint.

To aid the dealing with unauthorised incursions and related enforcement work

To mitigate one off costs against the agreed budget for any identified service investments or initiatives
inyear.

To support the interim direct management by the Council of the Brentwood Leisure

To fund mandatory CPC training for LGV drivers

To fund specialised cleansing in the Multi Storey Car Park and additional consultancy costs associated
with the Parking Strategy.

To fund schemes such as customer service accreditation, customer contact training and development of
social media engagement

To fund ongoing costs associated with dealing with planning applications

To fund election services costs

To fund the development of waste management within the Borough.

To fund planning costs associated with the Dunton Hills Garden Village Development.

To meet the cost of grounds maintenance at the new housing development at this site.

To fund work associated with the Local Development Plan.

To fund prevention iniatives, such as private sector leasing scheme, and to fund new costs associated
with the Homelessness Reduction Act 2018.

To fund preparations required of the Council when the UK exits the EU.

To fund grounds maintenance of the former hospital site.

To fund the cost of hedge maintenance at this location.

To fund costs associated with Community Rights to Buy and Assets of Community Value

Park improvement funding, earmarked specifically to contribute to the Council's play area strategy
To fund projects as determined by the Brentwood Health & Wellbeing Board.

To fund future costs associated with the with Doddinghurst and West Horndon Neighbourhood Plans.

To fund public open space improvements at land at Hanover House.

To assist local authorities deal with the financial pressures caused by the COVID-19 pandemic

To fund the Council's Leisure Service review.

To fund Council Tax reliefs for Council Tax payers financial Hardship Grant

To support the anticipated additional work for DCA authorities in handling queries related to open
UPRN/USRN data.

Brentwood Borough Council
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Transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves (continued)

COVID-19 Specific Reserves

ECC - Night Time Economy Grant

New Burdens for SBSG (covid-19)
Discretionary scheme

New Burdens LADGF (covid-19)

Test and Trace Admin

New burdens CT Hardship Fund and BRR
Tax Income Guarantee (TIG) Scheme
COVID 19 Volatility

NDR Collection Fund Deficit

Purpose

To support licensed premises during the easing of the lockdown restrictions
To fund the administration of COVID 19 grants to support small businesses

To fund COVID 19 local authority discretionary grants

To fund the administration of the Test and Trace programme

To fund the administration of delivering Council Tax and Business Rates relief.

To carry TIG received in 2020/21 to offset the future year deficits on the Collection Fund

To mitigate any financial pressures on services caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

To carry forward S31 Grant received in 2020/21 to offset the deficit carried forward on the NDR
Collection Fund due to the extended Retail Relief Scheme in 2020/21

Housing Revenue Account Reserves
Council Dwellings Investment Fund

Contains contributions from the HRA towards investment in the Council’s housing stock and funding the
Affordable Housing Programme.

Other Operating Expenditure

Parish Council precepts

Total

Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool
Gains on the disposal of non-current assets

2019/20 2020/21
£000  £000
549 577
189 660
(180) (889)
558 348

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Interest payable

Total

Net interest on the pensions net defined benefit liability
Interest receivable and similarincome

Net movement in bad debts provision

Income from investment properties

Changes in fair value of investment properties

2019/20 2020/21
£000  £000
2,245 2,830

964 910
(645)  (1,956)
481 125
(462) (376)
(748) 684
1,835 2,217
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8. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Council Tax Income (6,781)  (7,058)
Non Domestic Rates (246) 4,945
Non-ringfenced Government grants (note 32) (2,159) (9,827)
Donated asset 0 (6,060)
Capital grants and contributions (note 32) (59) (185)
Total (9,245) (18,185)

The Transferred/donated asset line represents the impact on the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Account of the Brentwood Leisure Centre building coming back onto the Balance Sheet in November 2020 (see
Narrative Statement page 13). See also note 9 below.

9. Property Plant and Equipment

9.1 Movements on balances in 2020/21

OtherLand Vehicles,
Council and Plant and Infra-  Community Surplus Assets Under

Total Dwellings Buildings Equipment structure Assets Assets Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross Carrying Amount (Cost/Valuation)
At 1 April 2020 308,740 261,804 33,355 6,685 1,526 2,943 1,707 720
Adjustment to opening balance (note 1) 241 0 0 0 0 0 0 241
Acquisitions 91,749 738 89,120 1,891 0 0 0 0
Additions 6,023 2,277 855 0 38 0 0 2,853
Transferred/donated assets (note 2) 6,060 0 6,060 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation increases to the Revaluation
Reserve 22,328 17,039 3,631 0 0 0 1,658 0
Revaluation decreases to Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services (2,850) (23) (2,645) 0 0 0 (182) 0
Accumulated depreciation written out to
gross carrying amount (4,099) (2,717) (836) (421) (125) 0 0 0
Derecognition - disposals (979) (979) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassified to Investment Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2021 427,213 278,139 129,540 8,155 1,439 2,943 3,183 3,814
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment
At 1 April 2020 (5,476) (343) (544) (4,190) (393) (6) 0 0
Depreciation charge (3,890) (2,649) (781) (448) (12) 0 0 0
Impairment losses to the Surplus/deficit
on the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derecognition - disposals 9 9 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers between categories 33 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
Reclassified to Investment Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accumulated depreciation written out to
gross carrying amount 4,066 2,717 836 388 125 0 0 0
Depreciation at 31 March 2021 (5,258) (266) (489) (4,217) (280) (6) 0 0
Net book value at 31 March 2021 421,955 277,873 129,051 3,938 1,159 2,937 3,183 3,814
Net book value at 31 March 2020 303,264 261,461 32,811 2,495 1,133 2,937 1,707 720
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9.2

9.3

9.4

Comparative Movements on Balances in 2019/20

OtherLand Vehicles,
Council and Plant and Infra-  Community Surplus Assets Under

Total Dwellings Buildings Equipment structure Assets Assets Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross Carrying Amount (Cost/Valuation)
At 1 April 2019 306,548 257,048 29,384 5,631 1,417 2,943 795 9,330
Acquisitions 4,459 4,284 0 175 0 0 0 0
Additions 6,142 798 533 879 109 0 0 3,823
Revaluation increases to the Revaluation
Reserve 5,868 4,924 (66) 0 0 0 1,010 0
Revaluation decreases to Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services (2,713) (2,345) (97) 0 0 0 (271) 0
Accumulated depreciation written out to
gross carrying amount (3,091) (2,597) (453) 0 0 0 (41) 0
Derecognition - disposals (357) (308) (49) 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers between categories 0 0 5,104 0 0 0 583 (5,687)
Reclassified to Investment Property (8,116) 0 (1,001) 0 0 0 (369) (6,746)
At 31 March 2020 308,740 261,804 33,355 6,685 1,526 2,943 1,707 720
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment
At 1 April 2019 (4,179) 0 (161) (3,704) (308) (6) 0 0
Depreciation charge (4,056) (2,606) (879) (486) (85) 0 0
Impairment losses to the Surplus/deficit
on the Provision of Services (343) (336) (7) 0 0 0 0 0
Derecognition - disposals 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers between categories 0 0 41 0 0 0 (41) 0
Reclassified to Investment Property 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 0
Accumulated depreciation written out to
gross carrying amount 3,091 2,597 453 0 0 0 41 0
Depreciation at 31 March 2020 (5,476) (343) (544) (4,190) (393) (6) 0 0
Net book value at 31 March 2020 303,264 261,461 32,811 2,495 1,133 2,937 1,707 720
Net book value at 31 March 2019 302,369 257,048 29,223 1,927 1,109 2,937 795 9,330
Notes

1. The adjustment to opening balance line represents expenditure originally recognised in the additions row,
which was incurred in the previous financial year.

2. The Transferred/donated asset line recognises the Brentwood Leisure Centre building coming back onto
the Balance Sheet in November 2020.

Assets Under Construction

The amount of £3.814m for Assets Under Construction is in respect of the following schemes:
e King George’s Playing Fields and Football Hub Developments - £2.198m
e Affordable Housing Development Schemes - £1.043m
e Sewerage Treatment Plant at Snakes Hill and Church Road, Navestock - £0.573m.

Depreciation
The following asset lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

e Council Dwellings 69 years

e Other Land & Buildings 5-69 years

e Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 5-10 years

e Infrastructure-land drainage 50 years

e Infrastructure-other assets 10 years
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9.5

9.6

Capital Commitments
The Council had not entered into any capital commitments as at 31 March 2021.

Revaluations

The Council carries out a rolling programme of valuations that ensures that a full revaluation all non-current
assets requiring to be measured at fair value is carried out at least every five years. The valuations in 2020/21
were carried out by Wilks Head Eve, an independent firm of Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
registered valuers in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the RICS, and in the CIPFA Code. The bases for valuation are set out in accounting policy 41.16.

Council Dwellings

Council dwellings are valued using the beacon approach. The stock is broken down into archetypes groups,
with an average value based on beacon values applied to each group. A full revaluation of the housing stock
was last carried out in 2017/18. A desktop review was carried out in 2020/21, which involved reviewing the
value of each beacon in the light of several information sources, including:

e  Sales of directly comparable property which have taken place during the financial year

* Information available at a local level showing house price movement, such as Lands Registry, Leading
Mortgage Lenders and other records of sales in the locality.

*  Regional and National Indices showing general trends in property values.

Other non-current assets

The values of asset classes have been assessed on the basis of local knowledge, publicised data and advice
received by other surveyors and valuers. Where possible, the assets have been examined internally and copies
of leases reviewed. A building survey has not been carried out, and the assets have not been inspected for the
purposes of condition or structural stability. It is assumed that the property is not subject to any unusual or
especially onerous restrictions, encumbrances or outgoings and that good title can be shown.

Surplus Assets

All of the Council’s surplus assets have been assessed as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy for valuation
purposes. The fair value of the surplus assets purchased in 2020/21 is deemed to be their purchase price. The
fair value of the other surplus assets has been measured using a market approach using current market
conditions, recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets. Market conditions for these
asset types are such that the levels of observable inputs are significant.

Valuation history of the Council’s assets

Total Council Other Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Surplus  Assets Under
Dwellings Landand Plantand Assets Assets Construction
Buildings Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Carried at depreciated historical cost 11,848 0 0 3,938 1,159 2,937 0 3,814
Valued at fair value as at

31 March 2017 3,518 0 3,518 0 0 0 0 0

31 March 2018 1,199 0 1,199 0 0 0 0 0

31 March 2019 3,188 0 3,188 0 0 0 0 0

31 March 2020 1,807 0 1,807 0 0 0 0 0

31 March 2021 400,395 277,873 119,339 0 0 0 3,183 0

Total Cost or Valuation 421,955 277,873 129,051 3,938 1,159 2,937 3,183 3,814
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10. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year, and the resources been used to finance it, is
shown below. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years, by charges to revenue as assets are
used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a
measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is
analysed in the second part of this note.

2019/20 2020/21
£'000 £'000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 93,364 119,239
Adjustment to opening balance 0 (5)
Capital Expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 9,997 94,918
Assets under construction 604 3,095
Long term debtors 19,000 27,500
Intangible assets 244 98
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 352 225
Total Capital Expenditure 30,197 125,836
Sources of Finance
Financing of capital expenditure:-
Capital receipts (1,517) (668)
Government grants and other contributions (352) (344)
Major Repairs Reserve (927)  (2,820)
Revenue contributions to capital expenditure (1,473) (500)
Total Financing of Capital Expenditure (4,269) (4,332)
Sums set aside from revenue for the repayment of debt (53) (265)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 119,239 240,473
Explanation of Movements in the Year
Net increase in the underlying need to borrow 25,875 121,234
Increase in Capital Financing Requirement 25,875 121,234
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11.

12.

13.

Intangible Assets
The balance of £0.066m (£0.115m as at 31 March 2020) represents the costs of strategic developments to the
Council ICT systems and infrastructure, including the development of cloud-based systems.

Heritage Assets

The Council has two heritage assets, the Shenfield War Memorial and the Heritage Column. These are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet because cost and valuation information is not available, and it is considered
that the cost of obtaining such information would outweigh the benefit to readers of the financial statements
in recognising the assets in the Balance Sheet.

Shenfield War Memorial is situated on Shenfield Road in Brentwood and is readily accessible to the public. It
was renovated in 2012/13 and has an expected maintenance-free life for the memorial of twenty five years.
Annual inspections will take place to ensure that appropriate maintenance will be carried out in the future.

The Heritage Column is a steel sculpture that depicts scenes of Brentwood's history. It sits at the junction of
Kings Road and Brentwood High Street and is accessible to the public at all times. There is no specific
maintenance programme for the column, which will be inspected on an ad hoc basis.

Investment Properties

The Council holds a number of commercial premises and pieces of land for the purpose of earning rental
income and capital appreciation. There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value
inherent in these investment properties or on the Council's right to the remittance of income and the
proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancement.

The Council earned £0.376m (2019/20 £0.462m) rental income from these properties, which is accounted for
in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of the investment properties over the year.
Valuations were carried out by Wilkes Head Eve, an independent firm of Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) registered valuers, in line with professional standard set out by RICS, and the CIPFA Code.

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Shops & Land Total Shops & Land Total

other other

premises premises
Balance at start of the year 5,826 2,930 8,756 14,406 2,992 17,398
Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net (losses)/gains from fair value adjustments

- through Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account 686 62 748 (64) (620) (684)
- through Revaluation Reserve (213) 0 (213) 0 0 0
Transfers from Assets Under Construction 6,746 0 6,746 0 0 0
Transfers from Land & Buildings & Surplus Assets 1,361 0 1,361 0 0 0
Balance at end of the year 14,406 2,992 17,398 14,342 2,372 16,714

Fair Value Hierarchy and Valuation Techniques used to determine Level 2 values

All of the Council’s investment properties have been assessed as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy for
valuation purposes. The fair value of investment properties has been measured using a market approach
using current market conditions, recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets. Typical
valuation inputs used include market rental and sale values, yields, void and letting periods, configuration,
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13.

14.

15.

15.1

15.2

Investment Properties (continued)

proportions and layout. Market conditions for these asset types are such that the levels of observable inputs
are significant.

Long Term Debtors

The balance of £60.314m mostly represents loans totalling £60.000m made by the Council to its wholly owned
Company, Seven Arches Investments Ltd, as detailed in the Related Parties disclosure on page 56.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of
another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those related to local taxation and government grants, do
not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by cash or
by a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets from another entity. The financial assets held
by the Council are carried in the Balance Sheet under the following classifications:

Long-Term Short-Term
Debtors Investments & Cash Debtors Total
Equivalents
31 March 31 March 31March  31March | 31 March 31March | 31 March 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amortised cost 33,085 60,314 1,533 3,203 34,618 63,517
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash at Bank 2,220 21,223 2,220 21,223
Short Term Investments 10 0 10 0
Total financial assets 33,085 60,314 2,230 21,223 1,533 3,203 36,848 84,740

The short-term debtors figure excludes debtors totalling £15.705m (£3.562m in 2019/20) representing non-financial
instruments such as Council Tax and NDR arrears.

These transactions are measured using inputs classified at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The Council also
holds shares in Seven Arches Investments Ltd. These are held at their nominal value of £100 because it is
impracticable to determine fair value.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council, represented by an
obligation on the Council to deliver cash to another entity. The financial liabilities held by the Council are
carried in the Balance Sheet under the following classifications:
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

Long-Term Short-Term
Borrowings Borrowings Creditors Total
31March 31March | 31March 31March | 31March 31March | 31March 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amortised cost (2,610) (7,520) (2,610) (7,520)
Borrowing:
- PWLB (61,166)  (103,159) (57) (5,237) (61,223)  (108,396)
- Money Market (35,061) (124,709) (35,061) (124,709)
- transferred debt (181) (174) (4) (4) (185) (178)
Total Financial Liabilities (61,347) (103,333) (35,122)  (129,950) (2,610) (7,520)| (99,079) (240,803)

The creditors figure excludes creditors totalling £9.972m (£3.109m in 2019/20) representing non-financial instruments
such as Council Tax and NDR prepayments.

These transactions are measured using inputs classified at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments
The following amounts are recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:-

2019/20 2020/21

Financial Financial assets Financial Financial
Liabilities measured at liabilities assets
measuredat amortised cost measuredat measured at
amortised cost amortised cost amortised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest expense 2,244 2,830
Interest income (645) (1,956)

15.3 Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are used as a comparison to the carrying value disclosed in the
Balance Sheet. In most instances, the carrying amount is deemed to be a fair approximation of fair value.
The fair value of PWLB debt has been calculated by comparing the terms of these loans against current PWLB
borrowing rates. The fair values are shown in the table on the following page:
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Assets:
Short Term Investments 10 10 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,220 2,220 21,223 21,223
Short Term Debtors 1,533 1,533 1,354 1,354
Long Term Debtors 33,085 33,085 60,314 60,314
Total Financial Assets 36,848 36,848 82,891 82,891
Financial Liabilities:
PWLB debt (61,166) (69,900) (108,396) (122,017)
Transferred Debt (181) (181) (178) (177)
Short Term Creditors (2,610) (2,610) (7,520) (7,520)
Short Term Borrowing (35,122) (35,122) (124,709) (124,709)
Total Financial Liabilities (99,079) (107,813) (240,803) (254,423)
16. Debtors
31 March 2020 31 March 2021
Gross Debt Impairment  NetDebt Gross Debt Impairment Net Debt
Allowance Allowance
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade receivables 522 (78) 444 591 (99) 492
Housing rents arrears 1,475 (974) 501 1,584 (1,111) 473
Financial assets at contract amounts 1,997 (1,052) 945 2,175 (1,210) 965
Central Government 973 0 973 8,863 0 8,863
Other local authorities 1,463 0 1,463 4,338 0 4,338
Council tax arrears 535 (246) 289 678 (246) 432
Non domestic rates arrears 1,006 (473) 533 1,452 (551) 901
Other sundry receivables 1,632 (1,074) 558 2,238 (1,063) 1,175
Prepayments 334 0 334 389 0 389
Total 7,940 (2,845) 5,095 20,133 (3,070) 17,063

The Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates figures represent the Council’s share of the total arrears for these
debts.

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash Overdrawn

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Bank current accounts 2,212 21,220
Cash floats 8 3

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,220 21,223
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18. Creditors

31March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Trade payables 2,316 6,895
Financial liabilities at contract amounts 2,316 6,895
Central Government 818 7,817
Other local authorities 754 507
Council tax pre-payments 132 111
Non domestic rates pre-payments 253 489
Other sundry payables 293 625
Receipts in advance 1,153 1,054
Total 5,719 17,498

The Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates figures represent the Council’s share of the total amounts owed.

19. Provisions

Non Insurance Legal Planning Total
Domestic Claims Claims Appeals

Rates

Appeals
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,100 223 95 0 1,418
Additional provisions made in 2019/20 139 0 408 85 632
Amounts used in 2019/20 (36) 0 (46) 0 (82)
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,203 223 457 85 1,968
Additional provisions made in 2020/21 188 0 5 14 207
Amounts used in 2020/21 (188) 0 (411) (49) (648)
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,203 223 51 50 1,527

Nature and purpose of each provision:

a) Non Domestic Rates Appeals . Under the Non Domestic Rates Retention scheme introduced in April 2013
councils are expected to meet the financial impact of successful appeals by ratepayers against the rateable
value of their properties on the rating list. The provision of £1.203m represents the Council’s share of the
provision.

b) Insurance Claims. This provision is to meet claims from the Council's previous insurers Municipal Mutual
Insurance who are subject to a Scheme of Arrangement.

c) Legal Costs. This provision is to meet the cost of several legal claims against the Council.

a) Planning Appeal. This provision is to meet the costs of any planning appeal made against the Council.
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19. Provisions (continued)

The timing of the settlement of these liabilities is uncertain, but the Council has taken the view that they are

likely to be settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. The balances as at 31 March 2021 have

therefore been classified as short-term liabilities.

20. Usable Reserves

Movements in the Council's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement on page 22

and in note 4 on pages 33-35. Note 4 also contains an explanation of why each usable reserve is held.

21. Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its

Property, Plant and Equipment.

Balance at 1 April

Upward revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment
Downward revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment
Sub total

Upward revaluation of Investment Properties
Downward revaluation of Investment Properties
Sub total

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

Balance at 31 March

31 March 31 March

2020 2021
£000  £000
106,232 110,226
11,526 25,824
(5,658)  (3,496)
5868 22,328
40 0
(253) 0
(213) 0
(1,538)  (1,414)
(123) (364)
(1,661) (1,778)
110,226 130,776

22. Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or

enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.
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22. Capital Adjustment Account (continued)

31 March 31 March

2020 2021
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 125,157 123,821
Reversal of items relating to Capital Expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (4,399) (3,892)
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (2,713)  (2,850)
Reversal of previous revaluation losses 0 0
Amortisation of Intangible assets (254) (147)
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (352) (226)
Donated asset 0 6,060
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain
or loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (355) (969)
Sub Total (8,073) (2,024)
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 1,661 1,778

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year

(6,412) (246)

Capital Financing applied in the year

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 1,517 668
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 927 2,820
Capital Grants and Contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 358 344
Revenue contributions to capital expenditure 1,473 500
Provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the General

Fund and HRA balances 53 263
Sub Total 4,328 4,595

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 748 (684)
Balance at 31 March 123,821 127,486

23. Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for
which cash settlement has yet to take place.

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 378 308
Recognition of gains 28 0
Transfer of net gain/(loss) on disposal to CIES (17) 0
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (81) (8)
Balance at 31 March 308 300
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24. Pension Reserve
The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.

31March 31 March
2020 2021
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April (41,454) (39,837)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 2,479 (2,455)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the (3,562) (3,487)
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable 2,700 2,566
in the year
Balance at 31 March (39,837) (43,213)

25.  Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account
The Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the difference that would otherwise arise on the
General Fund or HRA balances for accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the balances is neutralised by transfer to and from the

Account.
31 March 31 March
2020 2021
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April (86) (88)
(Increase)/decrease (2) (81)
Balance at 31 March (88) (169)

26. Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council
Tax and NDR income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax
and NDR payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund
from the Collection Fund.

31 March 31 March

2020 2021

£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April (382) (449)
Increase/decrease (67) (5,229)
Balance at 31 March (449) (5,678)
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27. Trading Operations
The Council operates car parks and collects trade waste, which generate income. The income from these
operations reduced significantly in 2020/21 due to the financial impact of the pandemic. Details of income
and expenditure (which are included in Protecting Our Environment in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement) are as follows:

2019/20 2020/21
£'000 £'000
Car Parks
Income (2,125)  (1,003)
Expenditure 1,005 1,030
(Surplus)/deficit (1,120) 27
Trade Waste Collection
Income (576) (410)
Expenditure 375 342
Surplus (201) (68)

28. Members’ Allowances
The Council paid £0.266m to Members of the Council during the year (£0.274m in 2019/20).

29. Officers’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Council's senior employees during 2020/21 was as follows:

Note Salary, Fees  Bonus Compensation  Employer's Total
and for loss of Pension
Allowances Office Contribution

Post £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive 125,000 0 0 23,738 148,738
Senior leadership structure wef 1 November 2020
Strategic Director (Deputy Chief Executive) 1 33,999 0 0 6,766 40,765
Corporate Director (Planning & Environment) 2 28,252 0 0 5,622 33,874
Corporate Director (Housing & Community Safety) 2 28,652 0 0 5,052 33,704
Corporate Director (Environment & Communities) 2 28,252 0 0 5,622 33,874
Corporate Director (Digital & Community Engagement) 3 33,208 0 0 6,608 39,816
Corporate Director (Finance & Resources) - S151 Officer 4 11,301 0 0 2,249 13,550
Corporate Director (Law & Governance) - Monitoring Officer 4 33,208 0 0 6,608 39,816
Senior leadership structure up to 31 October 2020
Chief Operating Officer 44,581 0 0 8,550 53,131
Director of Planning & Economy 37,542 0 0 7,471 45,013
Director of Commercial Services 8,738 0 0 1,327 10,065
Director of Housing & Enforcement 38,102 0 0 7,582 45,685
Director of Environment 37,542 0 0 7,471 45,013
Director of Corporate Resources (S151 Officer) 44,581 0 0 8,872 53,452
Director of Law & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 42,915 0 0 8,540 51,455

575,872 0 0 112,078 687,950
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1. Strategic Director (Deputy Chief Executive). The postholder was in post from 1 November 2020. The
annualised salary of this post is £81,598. There was also a second Strategic Director post, which was vacant
during the year.

2. Corporate Directors (Planning & Economy, Housing & Community Safety, Environment & Communities)
Each of the postholders were in post from 1 November 2020 and each post has an annualised salary of
£67,805. The Corporate Director (Housing & Community Safety) receives an annual car allowance of £960.

3. Corporate Director (Digital & Customer Engagement). This a 2 year fixed term position, which was
recruited to with effect from 1 February 2021. The annualised salary is £67,805.

4. Corporate Directors (Finance & Resources - S151 Officer and Law & Governance - Monitoring Officer)
Both of the post holders were in post from 1 November 2020. The annualised salary for both positions is

£74,698 and as statutory roles, both attract an additional £5,000 annual allowance.

5. Director of Commercial Services
The postholder was in post until 30 April 2020. The annualised salary was £80,000

The remuneration paid to the Council's senior employees during 2019/20 was as follows:

2019/20 Note Salary, Fees Bonus Compensation Employer's Total
and for loss of Pension
Allowances Office Contribution

Post £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive - to June 2019 1 15,349 0 56,404 2,686 74,439
Acting Chief Executive - June to Nov 2019 1 9,301 0 0 2,194 11,495
Chief Executive - Nov 2019 to March 2020 1 48,516 0 0 8,296 56,812
Chief Operating Officer 2 74,925 0 0 12,209 87,134
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer - to Aug 2019 3 31,580 5,000 94,118 6,209 136,907
Interim Monitoring Officer - Sept 2019 to Feb 2020 4 5,412 0 0 0 5,412
Director of Law & Governance (Monitoring Officer) - Mar 2020 5 5,822 0 0 996 6,818
Interim Chief Finance Officer (S151) Officer - to June 2019 6 13,787 0 0 2,358 16,145
Director of Corporate Resources (S151 Officer) - from June 2019 7 62,561 0 10,698 73,259
Director of Commercial Services 8 80,000 0 0 13,680 93,680
Director of Planning & Economy 9 63,096 0 0 10,789 73,885
Director of Housing & Enforcement 10 37,962 0 0 6,492 44,454
Director of Environment 11 61,408 0 0 10,501 71,909
Total 509,719 5,000 150,522 87,108 752,349
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29.

Officers’ Remuneration (continued)

10.

11.

Chief Executive. The post was designated at a part-time role in April 2019 at an annualised part time salary
of £59,400 The 